
ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK 
 Community Development District 

 
November 17, 2023 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



Isles of Bartram Park 
 Community Development District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, FL  32092 

Phone: 904-940-5850 - Fax: 904-940-5899 
 
 
November 10, 2023 
 
Board of Supervisors  
Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District Board of Supervisors is 
scheduled for Friday, November 17, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. at the Offices of GMS, 475 
West Town Place, Suite114, St. Augustine, FL 32092.  
 
Following is the advance agenda for this meeting:  
 
 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comment 
 
 III. Approval of Minutes of the August 11, 2023 Meeting 
 
 IV. Ratification of Audit Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates for 

Fiscal Year 2023 
 
 V. Ratification of Agreement with First Choice Aquatics, Inc. for Pond 

Maintenance Services 
 

 VI.  Other Business 
 
 VII. Staff Reports 

A. Attorney 
 

B. Engineer 
     

C. Manager  
 

D. First Choice Aquatics - Pond Service Report 
     
      VIII. Supervisors’ Requests 
 
 IX. Audience Comments 



 2 

 
 X. Financial Reports 

A. Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2023, and Statement of Revenues &  
 Expenditures 

  
   B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 

C. Approval of Check Register 
 

 XI. Next Scheduled Meeting – February 16, 2024 
 
 XII. Adjournment    
     



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



MINUTES OF MEETING 
ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Isles of Bartram Park Community 

Development District was held on Friday, August 11, 2023 at 1:30 p.m. at the Offices of GMS, 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Scott Forshey-Friedman  Chairman 
 Joseph Zemel Vice Chairman 
 Delton Stuck Supervisor 
 Nancy Brown Supervisor 
  
 
 Also present were:  
 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Wes Haber by phone District Counsel  
 
  
 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m. Four Board members were present 

constituting a quorum.  

  

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comment 

 Mr. Oliver stated this is the public’s opportunity to make comment on today’s agenda, any 

items about the CDD. Steve noted he was down to check on the proposal for the fish stocking in 

the pond and hat he was concerned about seems to have been corrected on the agenda. We will get 

some carp in there to help clean up some of the debris that seems to be compiling there. Mr. Oliver 

stated they would get to that item later and discuss it a little more.  

 

  



August 11, 2023 Isles of Bartram Park CDD 

2 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Affidavit of Publication 
 Mr. Oliver stated there is a public hearing today to consider the FY24 budget and that 

public hearing was noticed in the St. Augustine Record on July 14th and Just 21st.  

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the May 19, 2023 
Meeting  

 Mr. Oliver presented the minutes of the May 19, 2023 meeting and asked if there were any 

additions, corrections, or deletions. The Board had no changes. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Forshey-Friedman seconded by Ms. Brown, 
with all in favor, the Minutes of the May 19, 2023 Meeting, were 
approved.  

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Review of Approved Fiscal Year 2024 Budget  
 Mr. Oliver pointed out this is essentially the budget that you have from last year. He noted 

inside the front cover is the table of contents and the different budgets that we have. He noted the 

general fund budget also known as the O&M fund budget. He noted there are also the two bond 

series budgets for this year 2015 and 2017, debt service funds, and the capital reserve fund. He 

noted they are mostly focused on the general fund today. There were actually public hearings for 

the debt service funds back when those bonds were issued and the assessments are the same every 

year on that. He noted someday those will be able to be refinanced at a lower rate but right now 

we are not in that window. He stated that there will likely be opportunities in 2025 and 2027 

because these bonds when issued have a 10-year call protection restriction on them. He noted right 

now the interest rates are not conducive to refinancing anyway and hopefully our economy will 

get back to where we need it so we can refinance those in the future at a lower rate. He stated there 

are two sections of the general fund budgets, one is the revenue section and the other is the 

expenditure section. Looking at the very top of the budget, the assessments are the same in total 

as they were for FY23, far left column after account titles, you will see an amount of $287,000 and 

the same amount to the far right of that same line. He noted those assessments are not changing.  

 Mr. Oliver stated the CDD is a unit of government in Florida and required by Florida statute 

to approve the proposed budget each year by June 15th. He noted that was accomplished at your 

May meeting. He stated when the budget was approved, you also followed its requirement to hold 

a public hearing no sooner than 60 days after that approval so in that case you are more at about 



August 11, 2023 Isles of Bartram Park CDD 

3 

90 days. In front of you is the approved budget but after you have the public hearing, you will 

adopt the budget. The next section is the administrative expenditures for the District which is an 

increase of about $4,000 going from $112,000 to $116,000. He noted the field section drops about 

$3,000 so in total your total expenditures have an increase of less than $2,000. He stated again 

there would not be much change to this budget. At the very bottom you will see the per unit 

assessment is $481 for O&M and that does not count the debt service which was previously 

assessed. He pointed out going back to the debt service budget beginning on page six and what 

that budget is for is we have to pay the bond holders back for the bonds that were issued to build 

the infrastructure. He noted these bonds are to pay the two semiannual interest payments on 

November 1st and May 1st of each year as well as the principal payment on November 1st of each 

year. The amortization schedule shows that the 2015 bonds mature in 2045 and the 2017 bonds 

mature in 2047. He noted you will see that you are putting in $50,000 for your capital reserve fund, 

same as you did for the current fiscal year so will put you right at about $100,000 in capital 

reserves. He noted there are not a lot of assets out there for you to maintain, mainly just between 

Racetrack Road and the entry feature and those fountains and also lakes to maintain. Mr. Forshey-

Friedman asked if we have to add aeration to the ponds down the line, would that be pulled from 

the capital reserve? Mr. Oliver stated yes you can do that. Also, the energy cost associated with 

that would be funded with the general fund budget. He noted you don’t want to do it all at once as 

ponds can be pretty expensive especially if power has to be run to them.  

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing 
 Mr. Oliver asked for a motion to open the public hearing. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Forshey-Friedman, seconded by Mr. Stuck, 
with all in favor, Opening the Public Hearing, was approved.  

 

 Mr. Oliver asked for any comments regarding the public hearing. He asked for a motion to 

close the public hearing. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Brown, seconded by Mr. Stuck, with all in 
favor, Closing the Public Hearing, was approved.  

 



August 11, 2023 Isles of Bartram Park CDD 

4 

A. Consideration of Resolution 2023-05, Relating to Annual Appropriations and 
Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2024 

 Mr. Haber stated we have covered the substance of what these resolutions do. These 

resolutions formalize the actions that we just discussed. The first one formally adopts the budget. 

You may recall 60 plus days ago; you adopted a resolution approving the proposed budget. He 

noted that proposed budget was provided to St. Johns County and was subject to review and input 

and today you are presented with what is the final budget. This resolution provides for the formal 

adoption of the budget and that will be the budget for the next fiscal year starting October 1, 2023 

and ending September 20, 2024. It provides also for how that budget may be amended which 

largely it can be amended to shift dollars from line item to line item but it cannot be increased 

because as we will discuss in the next resolution, you are levying an assessment that funds that 

budget and without a revenue stream you are not able to increase the budget because there are 

funds for such increases He stated he would be happy to answer any questions regarding this 

resolution, otherwise a motion to adopt it would be appropriate.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Forshey-Friedman, seconded by Ms. Brown, 
with all in favor, Resolution 2023-05 Relating to Annual 
Appropriations and Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2024, was 
approved.  

 

B. Consideration of Resolution 2023-06, Imposing Special Assessments and Certifying 
an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2024 

 Mr. Haber stated this resolution is the formal assessment resolution. He noted this just 

levies and imposes the assessments that will allow the District to collect the amount set forth in 

the general fund for the budget and then certifies for collection which means GMS will send an 

assessment roll to the St. Johns County tax collector and these amounts will be included on the tax 

bills for all of the property owners within the boundaries of the District and will be collected. He 

stated this formally levies those assessments and certifies them for collection. He stated he is happy 

to answer any questions regarding this resolution. Mr. Olive asked for a motion to adopt.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Brown, seconded by Mr. Forshey-Friedman, 
with all in favor, Resolution 2023-06 Imposing Special Assessments 
and Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2024, was 
approved.  



August 11, 2023 Isles of Bartram Park CDD 

5 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposal to Stock Fish in 
Ponds 6 & 7 with First Choice 

 Mr. Oliver noted this is subject to review and approval by the Chairman. We need to go 

ahead and talk with staff and also with the vendor to see if additional treatments need to be done 

with pond 9 whether it is stocking grass carp or some other treatments. Mr. Forshey-Friedman 

stated looking at pictures, it looks like it is 6,7, and 11 and not 9. He noted pond 9 seems to be in 

good health but by the pictures some of the recent reports are 6, 7, and 11. He noted 6 is the 

problem child as it is the biggest body of water in the community and the one that we have always 

had challenges with. Obviously keeping it just esthetically pleasing and not smelling has been a 

challenge. He noted they have made some mitigation effort to that and trying to work our way to 

what a long-term sustainable solution would be. He stated they are in the process of providing 

some research and quotes which will come through Vesta then to Jim to understand what will help 

oxygenate the water. He noted fountains are pretty but they are not going to fix the issue and 

instead just spread it so we need something that is going to actually move and provide oxygen so 

these things do not continue blooming and continue to be a nuisance. He stated his 

recommendation would be to get an accurate pond number from the vendor and certainly we have 

seen success when we stocked because there is a limitation of frequency and how many fish can 

be stocked per pond based on size, water management and other laws. He stated to get some 

recommendations from them and then long term we will look at mitigation efforts for future 

expenses because this does cost. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Forshey-Friedman seconded by Mr. Stuck, with 
all in favor, the Proposal to Stock Fish in Ponds 6 & 7 with First 
Choice Subject to any Revisions Necessary to Treat the Ponds, was 
approved in substantial form. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Pond 6 Treatment Proposal 
with First Choice Aquatics 

 Mr. Oliver stated this was for the introduction of aluminum sulfate into that specific pond. 

This was executed back in late June. Mr. Stuck asked what this does. Mr. Forshey-Friedman stated 

it provides a non-harmful breakdown. The algae are getting so thick it is actually causing the 

erosion because it is causing the water to be pushed out and is building up so far. He noted they 



August 11, 2023 Isles of Bartram Park CDD 

6 

are coming out with airboats and rakes and pushing it out. This breaks it down organically and 

turns it into healthy organisms because you can’t scoop it out. This has helped but you typically 

need 60 days or so after the treatment per what they say in the research to see results. He noted 

they are hoping to see some of that.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Forshey-Friedman seconded by Ms. Brown, 
with all in favor, the Pond 6 Treatment Proposal with First Choice 
Aquatics, was ratified.  

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

 There being no comments, the next item followed. 

  

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
A. Attorney 

 Mr. Haber stated he had nothing else unless there are any questions.  

 

B. Engineer  
 Mr. Oliver stated Matt of ATM is our engineer and he doesn’t have anything to report. He 

noted they stay in touch between meetings.  

 

C. Manager – Presentation of Proposed FY 24 Meeting Schedule  
  Mr. Oliver stated this is in the agenda packet. He noted they proposed to stay on the same 

meeting schedule that they are on now. He stated at the last meeting it was discussed to have these 

meetings on Fridays and right now it is the third Friday of each month. He noted this shows 10:00 

a.m. but I can’t recall if that was the discussion we had. Mr. Oliver stated we will stay at 10:00 

a.m. Ms. Brown noted November 17th will be the next meeting. The location will stay the same. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Forshey-Friedman seconded by Mr. Stuck, with 
all in favor, the Proposed FY24 Meeting Schedule for Quarterly, 
Third Friday at 10:00 a.m., was approved.  

 

 

   

 



August 11, 2023 Isles of Bartram Park CDD 

7 

D. First Choice Aquatics - Pond Service Report 
 Mr. Oliver stated this is the report that First Choice provided. He noted it is a moving target, 

as lakes can look great in one period and then turn bad. Mr. Forshey-Friedman stated the goal is 

to maintain to make sure the water can run off freely and is safe and esthetically pleasing but it 

really is reacting to the environmental conditions.  

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors’ Requests 

 There being no comments, the next item followed.  

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 There being no comments, the next item followed.  

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 
A. Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2023 and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures 

 Mr. Oliver stated in the agenda packet are financials through June 20th, nine months into 

the fiscal year, you have a positive variance in your income statements, so you are in good shape 

there. No exceptions to discuss on the balance sheet.  

 

B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
  Mr. Oliver noted the District is fully collected for FY23 and the 2024 process started with 

adoption of the budget and tax bills will go out on November 1st from the tax collector.  

 

C. Approval of Check Register 
 Mr. Oliver reviewed the check register. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Forshey-Friedman seconded by Ms. Brown, 
with all in favor, the Check Register, was approved. 

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – TBD 
 Mr. Oliver stated the next scheduled meeting will be November 17th at 10:00 a.m. at the 

offices of GMS.  

 

  



August 11, 2023 Isles of Bartram Park CDD 

8 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Forshey-Friedman seconded by Ms. Brown, 
with all in favor, the Meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairperson / Vice Chairperson 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND FIRST CHOICE AQUATICS, INC. FOR POND 

MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 1st day of 
November, 2023, by and between: 

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being 
situated in St. Johns County, Florida, and whose mailing address is 475 West Town 
Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District”); and 

First Choice Aquatics, Inc., a Florida corporation, whose address is 11258 
Emuness Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32218 (hereinafter "Contractor", together 
with District the “Parties”).  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant 
to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, as codified in Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes ("Act"); and 

WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, 
constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, the District owns, operates and maintains 11 ponds within the boundaries of 
the District (“Facilities”); and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to enter into an agreement with an independent contractor 
to provide pond maintenance services for the Facilities; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a proposal and represents that it is qualified to provide 
pond maintenance maintenance services and has agreed to provide to the District those services 
identified in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein (“Services”); and 

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power 
and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.   The recitals so stated are true and correct 
and by this reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 

SECTION 2.   DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 980FF8D5-C4CD-45C2-A869-142A3A442DE4



2 
 

 
  A. The District desires that the Contractor provide professional pond 
maintenance services within presently accepted standards. Upon all Parties signing this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the District with the Services identified in Exhibit A. 
 
  B. While providing the Services, the Contractor shall assign such staff as may 
be required, and such staff shall be responsible for coordinating, expediting, and controlling all 
aspects to assure completion of the Services. 
  
  C. The Contractor shall provide the Services as shown in Section 3 of this 
Agreement. Contractor shall solely be responsible for the means, manner and methods by which 
its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District. 
 
  D.  This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are 
subject to this Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby 
agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations. 
        
 SECTION 3. SCOPE OF POND MAINTENANCE SERVICES. The Contractor will provide 
pond maintenance services for the 11 ponds within the District. The duties, obligations, and 
responsibilities of Contractor are to provide the material, tools, skill and labor necessary for the 
Services attached as Exhibit A. To the extent any of the provisions of this Agreement are in 
conflict with the provisions of Exhibit A, this Agreement controls. 
     
 SECTION 4. MANNER OF CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE.  The Contractor agrees, as 
an independent contractor, to undertake work and/or perform such services as specified in this 
Agreement or any addendum executed by the Parties or in any authorized written work order by 
the District issued in connection with this Agreement and accepted by the Contractor.  All work 
shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable to the District and 
shall be in accordance with industry standards.  The performance of the Services by the Contractor 
under this Agreement and related to this Agreement shall conform to any written instructions 
issued by the District. 
  
 A. Should any work and/or services be required which are not specified in this 
Agreement or any addenda, but which are nevertheless necessary for the proper provision of 
services to the District, such work or services shall be fully performed by the Contractor as if 
described and delineated in this Agreement. 
 
 B. The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be liable for the payment of any 
work or services not included in Section 3 unless the District, through an authorized representative 
of the District, authorizes the Contractor, in writing, to perform such work. 
 
 C. The District shall designate in writing a person to act as the District’s representative 
with respect to the services to be performed under this Agreement.  The District’s representative 
shall have complete authority to transmit instructions, receive information, interpret and define the 
District’s policies and decisions with respect to materials, equipment, elements, and systems 
pertinent to the Contractor’s services. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 980FF8D5-C4CD-45C2-A869-142A3A442DE4



3 
 

  
  (1) The District hereby designates the District Manager to act as its 

representative. 
 

  (2) Upon request by the District Manager, the Contractor agrees to meet with 
the District’s representative to walk the property to discuss conditions, schedules, and items 
of concern regarding this Agreement. 

 
 D. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its residents, 
and landowners from damage.  Contractor agrees to repair any damage resulting from Contractor’s 
activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours.  
 
 SECTION 5. COMPENSATION; TERM.   
 
 A. As compensation for the Services described in this Agreement, the District agrees 
to pay the Contractor Two Thousand One Hundred Dollars ($2,100.00) for the initial treatment, 
then Two Thousand One Hundred Dollars ($2,100.00) per month.  The term of this Agreement 
shall be from November 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024 unless terminated earlier by either 
party in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.  

 
 B. If the District should desire additional work or services, or to add additional areas 
to be maintained, the Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional 
work or services.  Upon successful negotiations, the Parties shall agree in writing to an, addendum, 
addenda, or change order to this Agreement.  The Contractor shall be compensated for such agreed 
additional work or services based upon a payment amount acceptable to the Parties and agreed to 
in writing. 

 
 C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to the 
Contractor that all subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers or laborers be paid and require evidence, 
in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be submitted to the District by those 
subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers, and further require that the Contractor provide 
an Affidavit relating to the payment of said indebtedness.  Further, the District shall have the right 
to require, as a condition precedent to making any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in a 
form satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to services to the 
District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations with regard to the  
withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, Workmen’s Compensation, 
Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar payroll deductions from the wages of 
employees. 

 
 D. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting practices.  
As soon as may be practicable at the beginning of each month, the Contractor shall invoice the 
District for all services performed in the prior month and any other sums due to the Contractor. 
The District shall pay the invoice amount within thirty (30) days after the invoice date. The 
Contractor may cease performing services under this Agreement if any payment due hereunder is 
not paid within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Each monthly invoice will include such 
supporting information as the District may reasonably require the Contractor to provide. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 980FF8D5-C4CD-45C2-A869-142A3A442DE4



4 
 

 
 SECTION 4. INSURANCE. 
 
 A. The Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the following 
insurance: 
 

(1) Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Florida. 

  
(2) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Contractor’s legal 

liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit 
bodily injury and property damage liability, and covering at least the following hazards: 

 
(i) Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and property 

damage in connection with any subcontractors’ operation. 
 

(3) Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 (one 
million dollars) per accident or disease. 

   
(4) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not less than 

$1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and for property damage, providing 
coverage for any accident arising out of or resulting from the operation, maintenance, or 
use by the Contractor of any owned, non-owned, or hired automobiles, trailers, or other 
equipment required to be licensed. 

 
B. The District, its staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as additional 

insured.  The Contractor shall furnish the District with the Certificate of Insurance evidencing 
compliance with this requirement.  No certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it 
provides that any change or termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverage, as 
certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written notice to the District.  
Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the 
State of Florida. 
 

C. If the Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required insurance, the 
District has the right but not the obligation to secure such required insurance in which event the 
Contractor shall pay the cost for that required insurance and shall furnish, upon demand, all 
information that may be required in connection with the District’s obtaining the required insurance. 
 
 SECTION 5. INDEMNIFICATION. 

 
A. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its officers, 

agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or representatives from 
any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, costs, interest, expenses, 
damages, penalties, fines, judgments against the District, or loss or damage, whether 
monetary or otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in connection with the 
Services to be performed by Contractor, its subcontractors, its employees and agents in 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 980FF8D5-C4CD-45C2-A869-142A3A442DE4



5 
 

connection with this Agreement, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, appellate, 
or settlement proceedings with respect thereto.  Additionally, nothing in this Agreement 
requires Contractor to indemnify the District for the District’s percentage of fault if the 
District is adjudged to be more than 50% at fault for any claims against the District and 
Contractor as jointly liable parties; however, Contractor shall indemnify the District for 
any and all percentage of fault attributable to Contractor for claims against the District, 
regardless whether the District is adjudged to be more or less than 50% at fault.  
 

B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, judgments, 
damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs, 
arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorneys’ fees, paralegal fees, 
expert witness fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy 
proceedings), any interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, or judgments against 
the District. 

 
 SECTION 9. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY.  Nothing in this Agreement 
shall be deemed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or the District’s limits of liability 
as set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would 
otherwise be barred under such limitations of liability or by operation of law.  
 
 SECTION 6. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION.  The Contractor shall 
keep, observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, 
regulations, or ordinances.  If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5) 
days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or an 
alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivision 
thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any action of the 
Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to terms, 
wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements applicable 
to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within five (5) 
days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an 
alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective upon 
the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 7. LIENS AND CLAIMS.  The Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for 
all labor employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform under this 
Agreement.  The Contractor shall keep the District’s property free from any materialmen’s or 
mechanic’s liens and claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason 
of the Contractor’s performance under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall immediately 
discharge any such claim or lien.  In the event that the Contractor does not pay or satisfy such 
claim or lien within three (3) business days after the filing of notice thereof, the District, in addition 
to any and all other remedies available under this Agreement, may terminate this Agreement to be 
effective immediately upon the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 8. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE.  A 
default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 980FF8D5-C4CD-45C2-A869-142A3A442DE4



6 
 

or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief, and/or 
specific performance.  The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this 
Agreement against any interfering third party.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or 
impair the District’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 9. CUSTOM AND USAGE.  It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the 
contrary notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions 
and agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in refraining from so doing; and 
further, that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this 
Agreement shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to 
the specific conditions and agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or 
waived the same. 
 
 SECTION 10. SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 
upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement, 
except as expressly limited in this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 11. TERMINATION.  The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement with cause by providing thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination to the District 
stating a failure of the District to perform according to the terms of this Agreement; provided, 
however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this 
Agreement.  The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement immediately 
for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. The District shall provide 
thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination without cause.  Upon any termination of this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all work and/or services rendered up 
until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-sets the District 
may have against the Contractor.   
 
 SECTION 12. PERMITS AND LICENSES.  All permits and licenses required by any 
governmental agency directly for the District shall be obtained and paid for by the District.  All 
other permits or licenses necessary for the Contractor to perform under this Agreement shall be 
obtained and paid for by the Contractor. 
 
 SECTION 13. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other.  Any purported assignment without 
such approval shall be void. 
 
 SECTION 14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.  In all matters relating to this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor.  Neither the Contractor 
nor employees of the Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning 
or application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or 
otherwise.  The Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or 
more of such laws with respect to employees of the Contractor, if there are any, in the performance 
of this Agreement.  The Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation, 
express or implied, on behalf of the District and the Contractor shall have no authority to represent 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 980FF8D5-C4CD-45C2-A869-142A3A442DE4



7 
 

the District as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 15. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or 
construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 16. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  A default by either Party under this 
Agreement shall entitle the other Party to all remedies available at law or in equity.  In the event 
that either the District or the Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings 
or otherwise, then the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate 
proceedings. 
 
 SECTION 17. AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete 
expression of this Agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  
None of the provisions of Exhibit A shall apply to this Agreement and Exhibit A shall not be 
incorporated herein, except that Exhibit A is applicable to the extent that it states the scope of 
services for the labor and materials to be provided under this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 18. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 
Parties. 
 
 SECTION 19. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Parties, the Parties have complied with all the 
requirements of law, and the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 20. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under 
this Agreement (“Notice” or "Notices") shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered, mailed by 
First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows: 
 
 A. If to District:   Isles of Bartram Park Community  
      Development District 
      475 West Town Place, Suite 114 

St. Augustine, Florida 32092  
Attn:  District Manager 

 
With a copy to:  Kutak Rock LLP 

      107 West College Avenue 
      Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
      Attn: District Counsel 
 

B. If to the Contractor:  First Choice Aquatics, Inc. 
11258 Emuness Road 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 980FF8D5-C4CD-45C2-A869-142A3A442DE4



8 
 

Jacksonville, Florida 32218 
Attn: _____________________ 

 
 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only 
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place 
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any 
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, 
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  
Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notices on behalf of the District 
and the Contractor.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the Parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by 
providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties and addressees set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 21. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of 
the Parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the 
benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation 
other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or 
any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, 
covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall 
be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns. 
 
 SECTION 22. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions 
contained in this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws 
of the State of Florida.  All actions and disputes shall be brought in the proper court and venue, 
which shall be St. Johns County, Florida. 
 
 SECTION 23. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.  Contractor understands and 
agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement 
may be public records, and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable 
provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, 
Florida Statutes. Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the 
District is Jim Oliver (“Public Records Custodian”).  Among other requirements and to the extent 
applicable by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District 
to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with 
the requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a  reasonable 
time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) 
ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the 
contract term and following the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the 
Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the 
District, at no cost, all  public records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain 
and meet all applicable  requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws.  When 
such public records are transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 980FF8D5-C4CD-45C2-A869-142A3A442DE4



9 
 

public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements.  All records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is 
compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.   

 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS 904-940-5850, 
JOLIVER@GMSNF.COM, AND 475 WEST TOWN PLACE, 
SUITE 114, ST. AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092. 

 
 SECTION 24. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 
 
 SECTION 25. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the Parties as an arm's length transaction.  The Parties participated fully in the preparation 
of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel.  In the case of a dispute 
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are each deemed to 
have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted 
or construed against any party. 
 
 SECTION 26. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such 
counterparts together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument. Additionally, the Parties 
acknowledge and agree that the Agreement may be executed by electronic signature, which shall 
be considered as an original signature for all purposes and shall have the same force and effect as 
an original signature. Without limitation, “electronic signature” shall include faxed versions of an 
original signature, electronically scanned and transmitted versions (e.g. via PDF) of an original 
signature, or signatures created in a digital format.  
 
 SECTION 27. E-VERIFY.  The Contractor shall comply with and perform all applicable 
provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, to the extent required by Florida 
Statute, Contractor shall register with and use the United States Department of Homeland 
Security’s E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees. 
The District may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief 
that the Contractor has knowingly violated Section 448.091, Florida Statutes.  By entering into 
this Agreement, the Contractor represents that no public employer has terminated a contract with 
the Contractor under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, within the year immediately 
preceding the date of this Agreement.                             
 

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 980FF8D5-C4CD-45C2-A869-142A3A442DE4



10 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed and sealed this Agreement on 
the day and year first written above. 
 
 
      ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK COMMUNITY  

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  
 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
  
         

ATTEST:       FIRST CHOICE AQUATICS, INC. 
       
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      By:  ____________________________________ 
      Its:   _____________________________________  
       

_______________________ 
Exhibit A:  Proposal 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 980FF8D5-C4CD-45C2-A869-142A3A442DE4



11 
 

Exhibit A 

 
 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 980FF8D5-C4CD-45C2-A869-142A3A442DE4



12 
 

 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 980FF8D5-C4CD-45C2-A869-142A3A442DE4



13 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 980FF8D5-C4CD-45C2-A869-142A3A442DE4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 

 

                                                  14289 Denton Rd  Jacksonville, FL 32226                                                                                                                      

Contact # 904-226-7031             Email: Firstchoiceaquaticsjax@gmail.com                 CEO: Daniel Thomas 

Service Report 
Date: October 10, 2023             Aquatic tech: Daniel Thomas 

Pond 1: This pond’s condition is 9 out of 10 at this time. 

 

 

 



Pond 2:  This ponds condition is 7 out of 10 at this time. 

For pond 2 I treated the perimeter for grasses and algae, I 

also applied more pond dye to help shade the bottom of 

the pond. This helps reduce submerged growth. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Pond 3: This ponds condition is 7 out of 10 at this time. 

This visit I treated shoreline grasses and minor algae, I 

also picked up trash along the perimeter. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Pond 4: This ponds condition is 8 out of 10 at this time. I 

treated pond 4 for the perimeter today for shoreline 

grasses and minor algae. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Pond 5: This ponds condition is a 7 out of 10 at this time. 

The last treatment was very effective, the water dropped 

exposing new grasses. Today I treated them the same as 

before, I expect to have the same results and get a really 

good kill. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Pond 6: This ponds condition is 7 out of 10 at this time. 

Over all this pond is looking much better, today I treated 

algae and submerged vegetation in the hot spots that are 

normal an issue. I expect to see really good results, I have 

a new chemical that works very well in hard water. 



Pond 7: This ponds condition is 5 out of 10 at this time. I 

treated the submerged vegetation along the perimeter and 

picked up minor trash.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Pond 8: This ponds condition is 6 out of 10 at this time. 

The perimeter treatment was very effective, today I 

treated again for algae and minor grasses. 

 

Pond 9: This ponds condition is 9 out of 10 at this time.  

 



Pond 10: This ponds condition is 9 out of 10 at this time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Pond 11: This ponds condition is 7 out of 10 at this time. I 

treated minor algae along the perimeter.  

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



9/30/23

as of
September 30, 2023

Isles of Bartram Park

Unaudited Financial Statements

Community Development District



Table of Contents

I.

II.

III.

Financial Statements -  Unaudited Financial Reporting

Special Assessments Report 

Check Registers Summary - 7/1/2023 -9/30/2023



Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

Combined Balance Sheet

September 30, 2023

 Capital 
Total 

Governmental
 General Debt Service Reserve Funds

Assets:  

Cash $185,275 --- --- $185,275

Investments:   

Series 2015:

Reserve --- $220,634 --- $220,634

Interest --- $394 --- $394

Revenue --- $310,041 --- $310,041

Sinking Fund --- $0 --- $0

Prepayment --- $14 --- $14

  Due from General Fund --- $15,919 --- $15,919

Series 2017:

Reserve --- $170,000 --- $170,000

Interest --- $376 --- $376

Revenue --- $261,884 --- $261,884

Sinking --- $1 --- $1

Prepayment --- $16 --- $16

  Due from General Fund --- $13,521 --- $13,521

Due from General Fund --- --- $50,000 $50,000

Due From Developer $900 --- --- $900

Prepaid Expenses $11,564 --- --- $11,564

Total Assets $197,739 $992,799 $50,000 $1,240,539

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $3,352 --- --- $3,352

Accrued Expenses $130 --- --- $130

Due to Debt Service 2015 $2,277 --- --- $2,277

Due to Debt Service 2017 $1,934 --- --- $1,934

Due to Capital Reserve $50,000 --- --- $50,000

Total Liabilities $57,692 $0 $57,692

Fund Balances:

Restricted for Debt Service --- $992,799 --- $992,799

Restricted for Capital Reserve --- --- $50,000 $50,000

Nonspendable $11,564 --- --- $11,564

Unassigned $128,483 --- --- $128,483

Total Fund Balances $140,047 $992,799 $50,000 $1,182,847

Total Liabilities & Fund Equity $197,739 $992,799 $50,000 $1,240,539

1



Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

Adopted Prorated Budget Actual

Budget 9/30/23 9/30/23 Variance

REVENUES:
 
Assessment - Tax Roll $287,023 $287,023 $288,443 $1,420

Total Revenues $287,023 $287,023 $288,443 $1,420

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:

Supervisors $4,000 $4,000 $3,600 $400
FICA Expense $306 $306 $275 $31
Engineering $6,000 $6,000 $0 $6,000
Dissemination $7,000 $7,000 $7,000 $0
Arbitrage $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $0
Assessment Roll $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0
Attorney Fees $10,000 $10,000 $3,754 $6,246
Annual Audit $3,900 $3,900 $3,900 $0
Trustee Fees $8,000 $8,000 $8,000 $0
Management Fees $49,140 $49,140 $49,140 $0
Information Technology $1,400 $1,400 $1,400 ($0)
Website Maintenance $950 $950 $950 ($0)
Telephone $150 $150 $30 $120
Postage $500 $500 $243 $257
Insurance $10,748 $10,748 $9,693 $1,055
Printing and Binding $1,300 $1,300 $228 $1,072
Legal Advertising $1,400 $1,400 $552 $848
Other Current Charges $900 $900 $620 $280
Office Supplies $200 $200 $3 $197
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0

Total Administrative $112,269 $112,269 $95,763 $16,506

FIELD:

Landscape Maintenance $57,800 $57,800 $36,512 $21,288
Lake Maintenance $25,800 $25,800 $24,030 $1,770
Waterfall/Entry Pond Maintenance $8,500 $8,500 $9,207 ($707)
Lake Fountains Maintenance $11,400 $11,400 $6,957 $4,443
Facility Management $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $0
Utilities $15,000 $15,000 $5,687 $9,313
General Maintenance $2,000 $2,000 $1,954 $46
Capital Reserve Fund $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $0

Total Field $176,500 $176,500 $140,348 $36,152

Total Expenditures $288,769 $288,769 $236,111 $52,658

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) ($1,746) $52,332

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $1,746 $87,715
 

FUND BALANCE - Ending $0 $140,047

For the Period ending September 30, 2023

2



11
OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP Total

Revenues:
 
Assessment - Tax Roll $0 $19,120 $56,911 $193,326 $8,453 $2,866 $221 $4,553 $1,471 $0 $1,520 $0 $288,443

Total Revenues $0 $19,120 $56,911 $193,326 $8,453 $2,866 $221 $4,553 $1,471 $0 $1,520 $0 $288,443

Expenditures:

Administrative
Supervisors $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $800 $0 $0 $800 $0 $3,600
FICA Expense $0 $77 $0 $0 $77 $0 $0 $61 $0 $0 $61 $0 $275
Engineering $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Dissemination $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $7,000
Arbitrage $0 $0 $600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $600 $1,200
Assessment Roll $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
Attorney Fees $165 $1,106 $47 $604 $505 $0 $163 $588 $142 $0 $306 $130 $3,754
Annual Audit $0 $0 $0 $3,900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,900
Trustee Fees $0 $4,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $0 $8,000
Management Fees $4,095 $4,095 $4,095 $4,095 $4,095 $4,095 $4,095 $4,095 $4,095 $4,095 $4,095 $4,095 $49,140
Information Technology $117 $117 $117 $117 $117 $117 $117 $117 $117 $117 $117 $117 $1,400
Website Maintenance $79 $79 $79 $79 $79 $79 $79 $79 $79 $79 $79 $79 $950
Telephone $12 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $30
Postage $22 $4 $106 $3 $8 $8 $15 $1 $8 $32 $5 $32 $243
Insurance $9,693 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,693
Printing and Binding $24 $3 $17 $15 $5 $17 $10 $1 $52 $43 $0 $42 $228
Legal Advertising $71 $136 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $68 $68 $209 $0 $0 $552
Other Current Charges $200 $0 $0 $20 $0 $200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200 $620
Office Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175

Total Administrative $20,236 $11,200 $5,644 $9,415 $6,468 $5,099 $5,070 $6,392 $5,145 $5,168 $10,046 $5,879 $95,763

Field
Landscape Maintenance $2,750 $2,750 $4,785 $2,832 $3,120 $2,832 $2,832 $2,945 $2,940 $2,832 $3,061 $2,832 $36,512
Lake Maintenance $2,850 $1,180 $1,580 $1,180 $1,180 $1,180 $2,580 $1,180 $6,380 $1,180 $2,380 $1,180 $24,030
Waterfall/Entry Pond Maintenance $908 $582 $1,007 $1,179 $821 $653 $806 $288 $692 $697 $900 $675 $9,207
Lake Fountains Maintenance $1,058 $0 $350 $0 $0 $400 $3,489 $490 $400 $0 $300 $470 $6,957.23
Management $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $6,000
Utilities $506 $696 $545 $531 $308 $552 $678 $468 $587 $0 $170 $645 $5,686.85
General Maintenance $0 $1,954 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,954
Capital Reserve Transfer $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000

Total Field $8,572 $7,663 $8,768 $6,222 $5,930 $6,117 $10,885 $5,871 $11,499 $5,209 $7,312 $56,302 $140,348

Total Expenses $28,808 $18,863 $14,412 $15,637 $12,398 $11,216 $15,955 $12,264 $16,643 $10,377 $17,358 $62,181 $236,111

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) ($28,808) $258 $42,500 $177,689 ($3,945) ($8,350) ($15,734) ($7,710) ($15,172) ($10,377) ($15,837) ($62,181) $52,332

Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

General Fund
Month By Month Income Statement

Fiscal Year 2023

3



Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund Series 2015
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the Period ending September 30, 2023

Adopted Prorated Budget Actual
	Budget 9/30/23 9/30/23 Variance

REVENUES:

Assessment - Tax Roll $429,732 $429,732 $431,873 $2,141
Interest Income $1,400 $1,400 $19,779 $18,379

Total Revenues $431,132 $431,132 $451,652 $20,520

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2015
Interest Expense - 11/01 $145,659 $145,659 $145,659 $0
Principal Expense - 11/01 $120,000 $120,000 $120,000 $0
Principal Expense - 11/01 Prepayment $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000)
Interest Expense - 05/01 $143,034 $143,034 $142,906 $128
Principal Expense - 05/01 Prepayment $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000)

 
Total Expenditures $408,694 $408,694 $418,566 ($9,872)

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) $22,438 $33,087

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $290,112 $513,915

FUND BALANCE - Ending $312,550 $547,001

4



Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund Series 2017
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the Period ending September 30, 2023

Adopted Prorated Budget Actual
	Budget 9/30/23 9/30/23 Variance

REVENUES:

Assessment - Tax Roll $341,479 $341,479 $366,822 $25,343
Interest Income $1,000 $1,000 $15,863 $14,863

Total Revenues $342,479 $342,479 $382,685 $40,206

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2015
Interest Expense - 11/01 $116,697 $116,697 $116,697 $0
Principal Expense - 11/01 $105,000 $105,000 $105,000 $0
Principal Expense - 11/02 Prepayment $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000)
Interest Expense - 05/01 $114,859 $114,859 $114,734 $125
Principal Expense - 5/01 Prepayment $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000)

Total Expenditures $336,556 $336,556 $346,431 ($9,875)

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) $5,923 $36,254

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $234,660 $409,545

FUND BALANCE - Ending $240,583 $445,798

5



Approved Prorated	 Actual
Budget Thru		03/31/23 9/30/23 Variance

Revenues:

Interest Income $0 $0 $0 $0
General Fund Transfer In $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $0

Total Revenues $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $0

Expenditures

Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0
Repair and Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Current Charges $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) $50,000 $50,000

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Other Sources(Uses) $0 $0 $0 $0

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $0

Fund Balance - Ending $50,000 $50,000

Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

Capital Reserve Fund 
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the Period ending September 30, 2023

6



Series 2015 Special Assessment Bonds

Interest Rate: 4.375%-5.125%
Maturity Date: 11/1/45
Reserve Fund Definition: 50% of Max Annual Debt Service
Reserve Fund Requirement: $218,893.13
Reserve Balance: $220,634.38

Bonds outstanding - 11/30/2015 $6,725,000
Less:  November 1, 2015 $0
Less:  November 1, 2016 ($110,000)
Less:  November 1, 2017 ($130,000)
Less:  May 1, 2018 (Prepayment) ($100,000)
Less:  November 1, 2018 ($100,000)
Less:  May 1, 2019 (Prepayment) ($20,000)
Less:  November 1, 2019 ($105,000)
Less:  November 1, 2019 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:  November 1, 2020 ($110,000)
Less:  May 1, 2021 (Prepayment) ($15,000)
Less:  November 1, 2021 ($115,000)
Less:  November 1, 2021 (Prepayment) ($20,000)
Less:  May 1, 2022 (Prepayment) ($85,000)
Less:  November 1, 2022 ($120,000)
Less:  November 1, 2022 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:  May 1, 2023 (Prepayment) ($5,000)

Current Bonds Outstanding $5,680,000

Series 2017 Special Assessment Bonds

Interest Rate: 3.50%-5.00%
Maturity Date: 11/1/47
Reserve Fund Definition: 50% of Max Annual Debt Service
Reserve Fund Requirement: $170,922.80
Reserve Balance: $170,000.00

Bonds outstanding - 11/30/2017 $5,345,000
Less:  November 1, 2018 ($50,000)
Less:  May 1, 2019 (Prepayment) ($25,000)
Less:  August 1, 2019 (Prepayment) ($15,000)
Less:  November 1, 2019 ($95,000)
Less:  November 1, 2019 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:  November 1, 2020 ($100,000)
Less:  November 1, 2021 ($100,000)
Less:  May 1, 2022 (Prepayment) ($15,000)
Less:  November 1, 2022 ($105,000)
Less:  November 1, 202 (Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:  May 1, 2023 (Prepayment) ($5,000)

Current Bonds Outstanding $4,825,000

Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

Long Term Debt Report

8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



SERIES 2015 SERIES 2017
DEBT DEBT

SERVICE SERVICE O&M
ASSESSED TO # LOTS ASMT ASMT ASMT TOTAL ASMTS

TAX ROLL NET 635 429,732.19       365,003.07       287,013.40 1,081,748.66     

TOTAL DISTRICT NET 635 429,732.19       365,003.07       287,013.40 1,081,748.66     

SERIES 2015 SERIES 2017
DEBT DEBT

SERVICE SERVICE O&M TOTAL 
RECEIVE FROM BALANCE DUE RECEIVED RECEIVED RECEIVED RECEIVED

TAX ROLL RECEIVED / DUE (5,389.93)        431,873.38       366,821.74       288,443.48 1,087,138.59     

TOTAL RECEIPTS / DUE (5,389.93)        431,873.38       366,821.74       288,443.48 1,087,138.59     

TAX ROLL RECEIPTS

SERIES 2015 SERIES 2017
DEBT DEBT

ST JOHNS COUNTY SERVICE SERVICE O&M TOTAL 
DISTRIBUTION DATE ASMT ASMT ASMT RECEIVED

1 11/2/2022 373.40              317.16              249.39        939.95 

2 11/17/2022 15,944.80         13,543.09         10,649.36   40,137.25          

3 11/28/2022 12,310.02         10,455.80         8,221.73     30,987.55          

4 12/12/2022 40,389.15         34,305.47         26,975.47   101,670.09        

5 12/15/2022 44,821.66         38,070.32         29,935.89   112,827.88        

6 1/20/2023 289,458.87       245,858.65       193,326.39 728,643.91        

INTEREST 1 2/1/2023 573.92              487.47              383.31        1,444.70            

7 2/21/2023 12,083.06         10,263.03         8,070.13     30,416.22          

8 3/30/2023 4,290.88           3,644.56           2,865.84     10,801.28          

INTEREST 2 4/6/2023 330.74              280.92              220.89        832.55 

9 5/8/2023 6,817.14           5,790.30           4,553.09     17,160.53          

10 6/20/2023 2,203.17           1,871.31           1,471.47     5,545.96            

11 8/8/2023 2,276.57           1,933.66           1,520.50     5,730.72            

- - - - 

- - - - 

- - - - 

- - - - 

TOTAL TAX ROLL RECEIPTS 431,873.38       366,821.74       288,443.48 1,087,138.59     

PERCENT COLLECTED TAX ROLL 100% 100% 100% 100%

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District
Fiscal Year 2023 Assessment Receipts

7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



Fund Date Check No. Amount

General Fund

Accounts Payable 7/1/23 - 7/30/23 969-977 $12,778.46
8/1/23 - 8/31/23 978-989 $40,537.92
9/1/23 - 9/30/23 900-996 $23,491.57

Total $76,807.95

* Fedex Invoices available upon request

Isles of Bartram Park
Community Development District

Check Run Summary
7/1/23 - 9/30/23



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/12/23          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2023 - 09/30/2023 ***       ISLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL

BANK A ISLES OF BARTRAM

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/14/23 00021 7/01/23 M8147    202307 320-57200-46400                                     *              450.00
JUL POOL CLEANING

CRYSTAL CLEAN POOL SERVICE, INC                                   450.00 000969
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/14/23 00036 7/01/23 1990     202307 320-57200-46100                                     *            1,180.00

JUL LAKE MAINTENANCE
FIRST CHOICE AQUATICS                                           1,180.00 000970

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/14/23 00001 7/01/23 113      202307 310-51300-34000                                     *            4,095.00

JUL MANAGEMENT FEES
7/01/23 113      202307 310-51300-52000                                     *               79.17

JUL WEBSITE ADMIN
7/01/23 113      202307 310-51300-35100                                     *              116.67

JUL INFO TECH
7/01/23 113      202307 310-51300-31200                                     *              583.33

JUL DISSEM AGENT SRVCS
7/01/23 113      202307 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .27

OFFICE SUPPLIES
7/01/23 113      202307 310-51300-42000                                     *               31.58

POSTAGE
7/01/23 113      202307 310-51300-42500                                     *               43.35

COPIES
7/01/23 113      202307 310-51300-41000                                     *                9.49

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,958.86 000971

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/14/23 00023 6/30/23 20244699 202306 320-57200-46400                                     *              241.74

JUN WATERFALL FOUNT/CHEM
INNOVATIVE FOUNTAIN SERVICES, INC                                 241.74 000972

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/14/23 00032 6/29/23 3239639  202305 310-51300-31500                                     *              587.50

MAY GENERAL SERVICES
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                    587.50 000973

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/14/23 00022 7/01/23 JAX54826 202307 320-57200-46200                                     *            2,832.13

JUL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
7/05/23 JAX55553 202306 320-57200-46200                                     *              108.00

JUN IRRIGATION REPAIRS
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                           2,940.13 000974

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/31/23 00035 6/01/23 5679603  202306 310-51300-48000                                     *               68.00

5/19 MEETING #8798500
CA FLORIDA HOLDINGS,LLC                                            68.00 000975

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/31/23 00025 1/18/23 01182023 202212 320-57200-46500                                     *              545.27

REIMB JEA IRRIG 01/18/23

IBTR ISLES OF BRTRM BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/12/23          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2023 - 09/30/2023 ***       ISLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL

BANK A ISLES OF BARTRAM

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

2/15/23 02152023 202301 320-57200-46500                                     *              530.64
REIMB JEA IRRIG 02/15/23

3/16/23 03162023 202302 320-57200-46500                                     *              308.40
REIMB JEA IRRIG 03/16/23

6/15/23 06152023 202305 320-57200-46500                                     *              467.92
REIMB JEA IRRIG 06/15/23

CELESTINA MASTER HOA                                            1,852.23 000976
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/31/23 00018 6/01/23 410345   202306 320-53800-45501                                     *              500.00

JUN MANAGEMENT SERVICES
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                     500.00 000977

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/17/23 00021 8/01/23 M8335    202308 320-57200-46400                                     *              450.00

AUG POOL CLEANING
CRYSTAL CLEAN POOL SERVICE, INC                                   450.00 000978

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/17/23 00036 8/01/23 2033     202308 320-57200-46100                                     *            1,180.00

AUG LAKE MAINTENANCE
8/07/23 2039     202308 320-57200-46300                                     *              300.00

4 LIGHT BULBS @ PONDS 3&5
FIRST CHOICE AQUATICS                                           1,480.00 000979

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/17/23 00001 8/01/23 114      202308 310-51300-34000                                     *            4,095.00

AUG MANAGEMENT FEES
8/01/23 114      202308 310-51300-52000                                     *               79.17

AUG WEBSITE ADMIN
8/01/23 114      202308 310-51300-35100                                     *              116.67

AUG INFO TECH
8/01/23 114      202308 310-51300-31200                                     *              583.33

AUG DISSEM AGENT SRVCS
8/01/23 114      202308 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .24

OFFICE SUPPLIES
8/01/23 114      202308 310-51300-42000                                     *                5.04

POSTAGE
8/01/23 114      202308 310-51300-42500                                     *                 .15

COPIES
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,879.60 000980

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/17/23 00029 8/01/23 08012023 202308 300-20700-10200                                     *            4,290.88

3/30 TAX DIST 8
8/01/23 08012023 202308 300-20700-10200                                     *              330.74

4/6 INTEREST 2
8/01/23 08012023 202308 300-20700-10200                                     *            6,817.14

5/8 TAX DIST 9
8/01/23 08012023 202308 300-20700-10200                                     *            2,203.17

6/20 TAX DIST 10
ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK CDD-DS 2015                              13,641.93 000981

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

IBTR ISLES OF BRTRM BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/12/23          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2023 - 09/30/2023 ***       ISLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL

BANK A ISLES OF BARTRAM

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 8/17/23 00030 8/01/23 08012023 202308 300-20700-10200                                     *            3,644.56
3/30 TAX DIST 8

8/01/23 08012023 202308 300-20700-10200                                     *              280.92
4/6 INTEREST 2

8/01/23 08012023 202308 300-20700-10200                                     *            5,790.30
5/8 TAX DIST 9

8/01/23 08012023 202308 300-20700-10200                                     *            1,871.31
6/30 TAX DIST 10

ISLES OF BARTRAM PARK CDD-DS 2017                              11,587.09 000982
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/17/23 00032 8/07/23 3264017  202306 310-51300-31500                                     *              142.00

JUN GENERAL SERVICES
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                    142.00 000983

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/17/23 00018 8/01/23 411827   202308 320-53800-45501                                     *              500.00

AUG MANAGEMENT SERVICES
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                     500.00 000984

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/17/23 00022 8/01/23 JAX57242 202308 320-57200-46200                                     *            2,832.12

AUG LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                           2,832.12 000985

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/24/23 00016 8/02/23 252-2569 202308 310-51300-33000                                     *            4,000.00

SE2017 TRUSTEE FEES
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON                                     4,000.00 000986

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/24/23 00035 7/01/23 5749384  202307 310-51300-48000                                     *              209.44

NTC OF MTG #9038909
CA FLORIDA HOLDINGS,LLC                                           209.44 000987

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/24/23 00025 7/20/23 07202023 202306 320-57200-46500                                     *              586.74

REIMB JEA IRRIG 7/20/23
CELESTINA MASTER HOA                                              586.74 000988

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/23 00022 8/25/23 JAX57788 202308 320-57200-46200                                     *              229.00

AUG IRRIGATION REPAIRS
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                             229.00 000989

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/23 00021 9/01/23 M8530    202308 320-57200-46400                                     *              450.00

AUG POOL CLEANING
CRYSTAL CLEAN POOL SERVICE, INC                                   450.00 000990

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/23 00036 8/29/23 2046     202308 320-57200-46100                                     *            1,200.00

TRTMENT/REMOVAL ON PONDS
9/01/23 2078     202309 320-57200-46100                                     *            1,180.00

SEPT LAKE MAINTENANCE

IBTR ISLES OF BRTRM BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/12/23          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2023 - 09/30/2023 ***       ISLES OF BARTRAM - GENERAL

BANK A ISLES OF BARTRAM

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

9/11/23 2086     202309 320-57200-46300                                     *              400.00
QRTLY FOUNTAIN MAINT

9/11/23 2087     202309 320-57200-46300                                     *               70.00
REPLACE BULB IN FOUNTAIN

FIRST CHOICE AQUATICS                                           2,850.00 000991
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/23 00001 9/01/23 115      202309 310-51300-34000                                     *            4,095.00

SEPT MANAGEMENT FEES
9/01/23 115      202309 310-51300-52000                                     *               79.17

SEPT WEBSITE ADMIN
9/01/23 115      202309 310-51300-35100                                     *              116.67

SEPT INFO TECH
9/01/23 115      202309 310-51300-31200                                     *              583.33

SEPT DISSEM AGENT SRVCS
9/01/23 115      202309 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .45

OFFICE SUPPLIES
9/01/23 115      202309 310-51300-42000                                     *               31.62

POSTAGE
9/01/23 115      202309 310-51300-42500                                     *               42.45

COPIES
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,948.69 000992

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/23 00013 9/08/23 24712    202309 310-51300-35300                                     *              600.00

ARB SE 2017 FYE 7/31/23
GRAU AND ASSOCIATES                                               600.00 000993

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/23 00023 8/31/23 20244997 202307 320-57200-46400                                     *              246.75

JULY WATERFALL FOUNT/CHEM
INNOVATIVE FOUNTAIN SERVICES, INC                                 246.75 000994

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/18/23 00022 9/01/23 JAX58694 202309 320-57200-46200                                     *            2,832.13

SEPT LANDSCAPE MAINT
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                           2,832.13 000995

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/28/23 00006 9/20/23 19905    202309 300-15500-10000                                     *           11,564.00

FY24 POLICY RENEWAL
EGIS INSURANCE ADVISORS LLC                                    11,564.00 000996

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 76,807.95

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               76,807.95

IBTR ISLES OF BRTRM BPEREGRINO












































































































































	Agenda
	III.       Approval of Minutes of the August 11, 2023 Meeting 
	IV. Ratification of Audit Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates for Fiscal Year 2023
	V. Ratification of Agreement with First Choice Aquatics, Inc. for Pond Maintenance Services
	VII. D. .    First Choice Aquatics - Pond Service Report
	X. A.    Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2023, and Statement of Revenues & 
	B. Assessment Receipt Schedule
	C.    Approval of Check Register



